
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Friday, 28 May 2021. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Environment 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 8 June 2021 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Nikki Manterfield (Chairman) 
Councillor Gloria Johnson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor John Cottier, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor 
Dean Ward and Councillor Hannah Westropp 
 

 

Agenda 
 

1.   Comments from Members of the public 
To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion. 
 

 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Disclosure of Interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

4.   Action Notes from the meeting held on 26 January 2021 
 

(Pages 3 - 9) 

5.   Updates from the previous meeting 
Members to receive an update on Actions agreed at the previous meeting 
 

(Pages 11 - 12) 

6.   Trees in South Kesteven 
To consider joint initiatives with the Woodland Trust for future working to 
protect, preserve and replace protected trees, hedges and woodland. 
 

Presentations from the Woodland Trust and Hugh Dorrington (Aveland 
Trees Ltd). 

(Pages 13 - 26) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

7.   DEFRA: Consultation on Consistency in Household and Business 
Recycling in England 
To receive a summary overview of DEFRA’s latest consultation 
 

(Pages 27 - 35) 

8.   Corporate Plan - Key Performance Indicators 
This report outlines South Kesteven District Councils performance against 
the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2020/21. 
 

(Pages 37 - 53) 

9.   Climate Change Update 

Members to receive verbal updates on: 

• Climate Change Action Task & Finish Group’s meeting on 12 March 
2021.  

• Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme Grant Funding.  

 

(Pages 55 - 60) 

10.   Work Programme 2021/22 
Members to discuss the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021/22 
 

(Pages 61 - 65) 

11.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, decides 
is urgent 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday, 26 January 2021, 10.30 am 

 

 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 
Committee Members present 
  
Councillor John Cottier (Chairman) 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
 

Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Linda Wootten 
Councillor Judy Stevens 
 

Cabinet Members 
 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 
Officers Other Members present 
 
Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 
Gary Smith, Strategic Director, Commercial and 
Operations 
Ian Yates, Assistant Director Commercial and 
Operations 
Ben Russell, Performance Lead 
Serena Brown, Sustainability and Climate 
Change Officer 
Naomi Page, Democracy Services 
Susan Hislop, Democracy Services 

Councillor Breda Rae Griffin 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
 

 

 
 

25. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
A register of attendance was taken. The Chairman, Councillor Nikki 
Manterfield, had given an apology for absence and Councillor Judy Stevens 
was attending as a substitute Member for this meeting only. Councillor John 
Cottier would be chairing the meeting. It was noted that Councillor Breda Rae 
Griffin was in attendance as an observer. 
 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

26. Disclosure of Interests 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 

27. Action Notes from the meeting held on 15 December 2020 
 
The Action Notes from the meeting held on 15 December 2020, were agreed 
as a correct record subject to an amendment to insert ‘are’ within the last 
sentence of the second paragraph on page 9.  
 

ACTION 1 
Democratic Services to amend minutes to insert ‘are’ within the last 
sentence of the second paragraph on page 9. 

 
28. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
Updates from the previous meeting were noted subject to a correction to the 
date of the meeting to 15 December 2020. 
 

It was noted that an item on planting trees agreed by the Council stipulated 
that the Council ‘would consider planting of trees’ rather than ‘would plant 
trees’ and that this item should be added to the Committee’s workplan. 
 

29. Performance Dashboards 
 
The Committee received a presentation to the Performance Dashboards 
report from the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations that had 
been revised in accordance to requests from the Committee. Data provided 
was up to date and afforded a guide of the work being undertaken, while 
recognising limited control over resident behaviour as well as not having 
control over those who provide private waste collection services. 
 
Members raised a number of queries to the report with explanations provided 
by the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations as below: 
 

• Graphs demonstrated a multiplicity of figures between months that had 
demonstrated February being a consistently low collection month that 
seemed to be due to seasonal trends 

• The average 41.58% recycling rate was principally a result of green 
waste collection. Due to the level of single use plastics used in 
production and by supermarkets, plastic continued to be an issue 

• With an average of 250 contaminated bins a week, Members were 
assured that efforts were continuing by raising awareness through 
social media sites and improved understanding 

• Due to a change in recording by Lincolnshire County Council it was no 
longer possible to provide exact waste collection figures by authority. 
Figures for South Kesteven were calculated by subtracting from the 
County total  

4



 
 

• Members expressed concern over the impending loss of the Deepings’ 
private recycling facility at the end of January 2021 and raised the 
benefits of skips provided by local Parishes  

 
A significant increase in fly tipping was raised by Members concerned by 
restrictions at recycling centres due to the pre-booking system implemented 
by Lincolnshire County Council. Members received assurance from the 
Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations that he had and would 
continue to raise the issue at the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership with local 
councils having covered the cost of fly tipping rather than the County Council.  
 
The Interim Street Care Services Manager and her team were recognised for 
their prompt action to deal with fly tipping.  
 
In discussion, the Members also raised the Best Kept Village Award that had 
generated great enthusiasm across the District. An update was provided by 
the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations that plans were already 
in place for South Kesteven District Council to take responsibility to run the 
award for 2021. Members also raised: 
 

• The difficulty for those with dementia in using the correct bin and was 
advised of the assisted collection scheme provided by the Council. 
Additional means of providing clear advice would be considered 

• Challenges to the use of electric powered refuse collection vehicles 
were explained due to the level of mileage required within the District in 
comparison to more urban areas 

 
Additional approvements to the dashboards were requested through the use 
of text and colour for increased clarity to demonstrate emissions as well as a 
baseline to determine longer term statistics. The limitation of a hardcopy 
presentation was recognised with a Member supportive to information 
becoming available online. 
 
ACTION 2 

1. The Performance Lead to amend the performance dashboard to make 
it even clearer which period the figures and any averages relate to 

2. The Strategic Director Commercial and Operations to circulate to the 
Committee a list of fly tipping prosecutions within South Kesteven  

3. The Sustainability and Climate Change Officer to provide a list of 
innovative ways to reduce waste and encourage recycling to Members 

4. The Strategic Director Commercial and Operations to consider means 
of providing clear advice to residents on what can go in what bin which 
can be communicated to the public (including those with dementia) 

 
A vote by exception was taken and carried to recommend:  
 

Approval to the revised dashboards and continued support to the 
ongoing transformation of performance reporting. 

5



 
 

 
30. Performance Indicators 

 
The Assistant Chief Executive presented the report on behalf of the Leader of 
the Council. Following agreement to the Corporate Plan by the Full Council on 
1 October 2020, performance targets relevant to this Committee were 
identified and presented periodically to track deliverability to the Council’s key 
priorities. An annual performance report would be presented to Cabinet 
following consideration by the relevant scrutiny committees. 
 
A Member queried housing register figures within the Corporate Plan 
(Appendix A) that provided figures for 2019 rather than 2020; figures were 
now available for 2020 and would be provided to the Member. 
 
ACTION 3 

Councillor Linda Wootten to be provided with housing register figures 
for 2020. 
 

In response to questions from Members, the Cabinet Member for Commercial 
and Operations advised: 
 

• Achieving Green Flag Status involved considerable effort; other 
categories were available that could be more appropriate for Jubilee 
Park in the Deepings  

• Food Waste collection costs alongside benefits were being considered 
towards achieving a neutral cost 

• Breaking down waste collection by household was recognised as 
challengeable due to available figures provided by County, however an 
average figure per household would be provided through the 
dashboard with the KPI reflecting average recycling per household 

 
ACTION 4 

The dashboard to be updated to reflect average recycling per 
household 

 
A vote by exception was taken and carried to recommend:  
 

1. To Cabinet the proposed key performance indicators and targets 
associated with the actions in the South Kesteven District Council 
Corporate Plan 2020-23. 

2. To note that key performance indicators and success criteria for each 
action will be reviewed and if necessary revised as part of the annual 
review process. 

 
31. Big Clean 

 
The Committee were provided with an update by the Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations on the Big Clean scheme that had been 

6



 
 

suspended during Covid-19 restrictions to enable staff to be redeployed to 
support the continuation of refuse collection services.  
 

The Big Clean had provided a good investment in addressing ‘grot spots’ and 
setting a district-wide Higher Street standard through local teamwork. The 
district was cleaner and more attractive as a result. Councillors were 
encouraged to visit the Big Clean Team at work, location details were 
provided on the Council’s website at The Big Clean.  
 
Members praised the success of the scheme. Overhanging hedging from 
privately owned land was queried in terms of the legal position and process to 
require owners to take appropriate measures.  
 
ACTION 5 

The Strategic Director Commercial and Operations to provide details of 
how to report overhanging hedging from private landowners to 
Councillor Gloria Johnson. 

 
32. Cycling in South Kesteven with Staff Travel Survey 

 
A summary of the staff travel survey undertaken during February 2020 was 
provided by the Sustainability and Climate Change Officer. In addition to 
establishing how staff travelled to and from work, it provided data on the Cycle 
to Work Scheme. Having been carried out pre-Covid-19, it was recognised 
that staff travel had drastically changed however this provided a snapshot of 
staff travel at that time. 
 
At the request of the Chairman, Members considered the presentation and 
discussed the following: 
 

• Staff homeworking, telecommuting and holding online meetings during 
the pandemic had presented positives, including a reduction of staff 
mileage 

• Continuation of online meetings post-lockdown was being investigated 
that included new technology to stream meetings in the Council 
Chamber 

• New ways of working were being considered to recognise the need for 
staff to have more in person working, including a hybrid system; split 
between homeworking and office. Wellbeing of staff and Members was 
recognised  

• A new hybrid policy was being considered by the Chief Executive and 
Human Resources which would consider the impact to buildings and 
technology  

• Operational services had continued to be active 
 
Members considered the presentation provided by Sustrans at the meeting 
held on 15 December 2020. The Chairman requested ideas to present to 
Cabinet. Suggestions from Members included: 

7

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=12438


 
 

 

• Improved facilities to encourage staff and Members to cycle such as 
secure cycle parking, changing facilities, showers and potentially 
making a pool of bikes available for short term use. It was recognised 
that some parts of the District were more accessible for pool bikes than 
others. Members noted that the previous cycle store for staff and the 
public in St Peter’s Hill had been demolished and relocated. 

• A recommendation for planners to imbed into the planning process 
cycle and pedestrian facilities within planning applications; it was 
acknowledged that the Council’s planners do already prioritise this 
objective, for example, through the Design Guide Supplementary 
Planning Document. 

• The Bourne CiCLE Festival was considered by Members to be an 
excellent event to promote the District while recognition was made that 
this could be more cost effective and lessons learnt to the one held 
previous. Sponsorship would need to be considered. It was reported 
that a business plan had been presented to the Cabinet Member for 
Culture and Visitor Economy. 

 
A continuation of the Bourne CiCLE Festival was PROPOSED by Councillor 
Ashley Baxter and SECONDED by Councillor Phil Dilks. The proposal was 
amended to reflect that this event falls within the remit of the Culture and 
Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
A vote by exception was taken and carried with one abstention to recommend 
to Cabinet:  
 

1. To request Cabinet investigates the breakdown of costs and benefit for 
each facility for secure bike storage, including shower facilities, and to 
include pool cycle opportunities at the main council offices 

2. That the Planning Team create a local policy to highlight pedestrian 
and cycling facilities  

3. That the relevant committee to look again at the Bourne CiCLE Festival 
and work with outside agencies 

 
33. Work Programme 

 
Members suggested that the Committee consider the potential for the Council 
to introduce a policy for replacing felled trees and promoting tree cover in the 
District. 
 

The Strategic Director for Commercial and Operational informed the 
Committee that he had been in contact with the Woodland Trust with 
provisional request to provide a presentation at the committee’s meeting 
scheduled for 20 April 2021. Clarification was sought for the focus of the 
Woodland Trust’s update. 
 

8



 
 

Members welcomed a presentation by the Woodland Trust to share their 
opinion as experts in relation to tree management. The suggested topics to be 
covered included a brief overview of what the Woodland Trust do, the 
progress of the Tree Charter both locally and nationally and the role of trees in 
carbon capture and storage.  
 
ACTION 6 

Democracy Services to liaise with the Strategic Director Commercial and 
Operations to update wording for Work Programme to reflect requests 
raised by committee members 

 
34. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 
None had been received. 
 

Meeting closed 13:00 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 26 January 2021 

Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

27 Action Notes 
from the 
meeting held 
on 15 
December 
2020 

Democratic Services to amend 
minutes to insert ‘are’ within the 
last sentence of the second 
paragraph on page 9. 
 

Democratic 
Services 

Complete 
Minutes corrected and republished. 

Before the 
next 
meeting 

29 Performance 
Dashboards 

The Performance Lead to 
amend the performance 
dashboard to make it even 
clearer which period the figures 
and any averages relate to. 

Performance Lead 
(Ben Russel) 

In progress 
This amendment will be incorporated into 
the next performance dashboard report 
(at the first meeting in the 2021/22 
municipal year). 
 

Before the 
next 
meeting 

The Strategic Director 
Commercial and Operations to 
circulate to the Committee a list 
of fly tipping prosecutions within 
South Kesteven. 
 

The Strategic 
Director 
Commercial and 
Operations 
(Gary Smith) 

Complete 
Emailed to Committee Members 8th April 
2021. (Included in attached word 
document) 

Before the 
next 
meeting 

The Sustainability and Climate 
Change Officer to provide a list 
of innovative ways to reduce 
waste and encourage recycling 
to Members. 
 

Sustainability and 
Climate Change 
Officer 
(Serena Brown) 

Complete 
Emailed to Committee Members 8th April 
2021. (Included in attached word 
document) 

Before the 
next 
meeting 

11

A
genda Item

 5



Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

The Strategic Director 
Commercial and Operations to 
consider means of providing 
clear advice to residents on 
what can go in what bin which 
can be communicated to the 
public (including those with 
dementia). 

Strategic Director 
Commercial and 
Operations 
(Gary Smith) 

Complete 
Response from Gary Smith: 
A clear, colourful and simple graphic of 
what can go in which bin is on SKDC’s 
website and is regularly included or 
referenced in SK Today and other 
Council communications: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.a
spx?articleid=9021    

Before the 
next 
meeting 

30 Corporate Plan 
Performance 
Indicators and 
Targets 

Councillor Linda Wootten to be 
provided with housing register 
figures for 2020 

Interim Director of 
Housing 
(Chris Stratford)  

 

Complete 
Circulated on 16 April 2021 

Before the 
next 
meeting 

The existing waste dashboard to 
be updated to reflect average 
recycling per household 

Performance Lead 
(Ben Russel) 

Complete 
The dashboard will be updated before it 
is presented at the next meeting.  
 

Before the 
next 
meeting 

31 Big Clean The Strategic Director 
Commercial and Operations to 
provide details of how to report 
overhanging hedging from 
private landowners to Councillor 
Gloria Johnson. 

Strategic Director 
Commercial and 
Operations 
(Gary Smith) 

Complete 
The information was emailed to Cllr 
Johnson on 1 February 2021.  

5 March 
2021 

33 Work 
Programme 

Democratic Services to liaise 
with the Strategic Director 
Commercial and Operations to 
update wording for Work 
Programme to reflect requests 
raised by committee members 

Democratic 
Services  

In progress 
As the final meeting in the 2020/21 
period was cancelled, an amended work 
programme will be produced when the 
dates for the 2021/22 schedule of 
meetings have been confirmed. 

Before the 
next 
meeting 

 

12

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=9021
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=9021


Community Woodlands
A Presentation by Hugh Dorrington 

of Aveland Trees Ltd

13

A
genda Item

 6



14



15



16



Building Back Better with Trees

Nick Sandford
Regional External Affairs Officer – Midlands and East

Sarah Shorley
Project Officer,  Urban Programme

1

17



The Woodland Trust

• UK’s largest woodland conservation charity

• Headquarters in Grantham 

• Over 500,000 members and supporters

• Own and manage over 1000 woods

• Our vision:  A UK rich in woods and trees

18



Why we work with councils

• To influence policy: eg local plan & tree strategies

• To protect trees/woods and plant new ones

• To build long term partnerships

• Supporting councils in engaging local communities –
for example, Sheffield

19



20



Work so far with SKDC

• Tree Charter

• Tree management policy

• Greening of Grantham

• Grantham Oak

• Spitalgate Heath Garden Village

• Grantham Barracks

21



Tackling Three Emergencies

• Climate Emergency

• Biodiversity Emergency

• Covid Emergency

22



Solving the problems together

• Emergency Tree Plan

• Emergency Tree Fund

• Policy development leading to delivery of trees 
in the ground

23



Case study: Wolverhampton

• Work on a tree and woodland strategy

• Getting trees in the ground

• Bid to Emergency Tree Fund

• Link to wider work in the Black Country

8

Click to add text

24



Future partnership opportunities

• A comprehensive tree strategy for SKDC

• Finding sites for planting new woods and trees

• Tree Charter Day

• Bid to Emergency Tree Fund

• Future High Streets Fund
9

25



Thank you 
for listening 

Nick Sandford – nicksandford@woodlandtrust.org.uk
@treesnick

Sarah Shorley - sarahshorley@woodlandtrust.org.uk
@WTSarahShorley26

mailto:nicksandford@woodlandtrust.org.uk
mailto:sarahshorley@woodlandtrust.org.uk


DEFRA: Consultation on Consistency in Household and 

Business Recycling in England 2021

27

A
genda Item

 7



3 Consultations

• Extended producer responsibility for packaging reforms (closes 4th

June)

• Deposit return scheme (closes 4th June)

• Consistency in household and business recycling (closes 4th July)

28



Extended producer responsibility for packaging reform

• Intended to shift the cost of collecting and treating packaging in 

household waste from taxpayers to producers

• Fees imposed on producers

• Clearer labeling

• Plastic film proposals to recycle more

• Litter packaging  - producer responsible

• Payments to local authorities based on tonnages and quality of products

• Actual cost or modelled but linked to performance standards

• Trade waste – changes to collections to encourage recycling and improve 

efficiencies ie zonal collections

29



Deposit return scheme (DRS)

• UK annual figures

• 14 billion plastic bottles

• 9 billion drink cans

• 5 billion glass bottles

• Providers, retailers to deliver a redeemable deposit on all in-scope drink 

containers 

• Retailers to accept all returns and refund

• Add the deposit onto the drinks when sold

• Included - PET plastic bottles, glass bottles, steel and aluminium cans

• Sizes?  up to 750ml or all in ie all sizes ?

• Start earliest 2024

30



Consistency in household and business recycling

• Falling recycling rate

• Need for greater consistency

• Core set – Glass, Paper/card, Metal, Plastic

• Assumed collected separately

• Unless technically, economic, environmentally no case

• Additional costs from “New Burden’s” funding?

• Business funding re Producer Responsibility packaging reforms

• To include – plastic film! Drink cartons!

• Target date by October 2023

• Plastic film included by 2026/27 – links to packaging proposals

31



Food Waste

• Compulsory for all households during 2023/24

• To reduce food waste going to landfill - very little in Lincolnshire

• To be separate from green (subject to test)

• Latest 2024/25 – 2031?

• Types – food scraps, tea bags, coffee grounds

• Yes to caddy liners!!

32



Garden Waste

• Separate collections 

• Minimum service to be free?

• Over and above minimum  could be charged for?

• Target date 2023/24

• Last consultation - 80% of customers supported free collections

• Last consultation - 71% of Councils disagreed

• So whats the cost benefit? is being consulted on

• Case for “reasonable charge” being allowed is being consulted on

• Current charges range for £24 - £96

• Average is £43

33



Guidance

• Statutory guidance – Sec of State will decide what will be collected!

• Removes local choices

• Improves consistency 

• We might be able to choose the colour of the bins!!

34



Next steps

• Lincolnshire Waste Partnership (LWP) will be responding

• Consultations results based on numbers who respond

• Committee response?

35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

`  

Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

08 June 2021 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The 
Leader of the Council 

   

         
  

 

Corporate Plan - Key Performance Indicators 

This report outlines South Kesteven District Councils performance against the Corporate Plan Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2020/21. 

 

 

Report Author 

Ben Russell, Performance Lead, Organisational Development & Change 

 
01476 406080 

 Ben.russell@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

A high performing Council Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive 26 May 2021 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 27 May 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 27 May 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the contents of the 2020/21 performance report. 

37

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 October 

2020. The Corporate Plan sets out the strategic vision and key priorities of the Council.  

The Corporate Plan underpins the Council’s strategic activity and provides the 

performance framework for managing the delivery of the actions and priorities in the Plan. 

It is good practice for a public sector organisation seeking to deliver a wide set of aims and 

objectives to set out a Corporate Plan and regularly review the activity and achievements 

against it. 

1.2 It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets 

would be developed by the relevant overview and scrutiny committee, which would retain 

oversight of the performance management arrangements at a strategic level. These 

actions and indicators were presented to this committee and agreed on 26 January 2021. 

1.3 The summary presented uses the most recent data available relevant to the actions and 

KPIs for the 2020/21 period. Information may not be available for all performance 

measures, due to how they are collected, or the planned stages of the projects involved. 

Explanations are provided as appropriate throughout the summary. 

1.4 This is the first presentation of the Corporate Plan performance report and is considered a 

work in progress as the Council seeks to improve the ways in which progress against the 

corporate objectives are monitored. Members are however invited to make suggestions as 

to any additional information which would support their monitoring of performance in these 

areas. 

1.5 Appendix 1 outlines the overall performance against the 8 actions, as well as specific 

performance against the 15 sub measures contained within those. Specific commentary is 

provided for each action, but the summary is as follows:  

1. 6 of the actions are rated Green. These are actions which are on or above target as 

planned.  

2. 1 action is rated as Amber, these are those off target by less than 10% or where 

milestone achievement is delayed but with resolution in place to be achieved within a 

reasonable timeframe.  

3. 0 actions are rated Red. These are those falling significantly below target or overdue 

with no specific resolution date planned. 

4. 1 action has no status, this is due to limited or out of date information or where a 

measure is not due for collection in the reporting period.  

1.6 Future presentations of the report will include direction of travel (DoT) indicators. These 

have been included in this presentation but remain blank as this is the first presentation of 

this report format. 

1.7 Appendix 2 shows the previously presented waste dashboard – amended as per members 

requests, and Appendix 3 contains the quarterly Carbon Emissions tracker and electric 

vehicle charging points dashboard. These include data to the end of Quarter 3 of 2020/21 

– the latest reporting period for which complete data exists. Data from external sources is 

not usually available at the end of a period, so delays in presenting this are expected. Full 

data for carbon and waste in 2020/21 will be included in the next presentation of this 

report. 

38



 

 
 

2 Financial Implications  

2.1 The financial considerations where appropriate are referenced throughout this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

3 Legal and Governance Implications  

3.1 Regular reporting on agreed performance dashboards is to be welcomed from a 

governance point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on 

performance. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

4.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting from this 

report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be addressed as required. 

5 Risk and Mitigation 

5.1 No significant risks have been identified. 

6 Community Safety Implications  

6.1 No significant implications have been identified. 

7 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

7.1 The contents of this report do not have a direct impact on the council’s carbon emissions 

or the carbon emissions of the wider district. However, the carbon emissions dashboard 

shown in appendix 3 does provide a summary overview of the Council’s carbon footprint. 

8 Background Papers 

8.1 Agenda and Minutes from the Council meeting held 01 October 2020 (Item 27 – South 

Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan) 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=4  

8.2 Agenda and action notes from the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

meeting held on 26 January 2021 (Item 30 – Performance Indicators) 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=630&MId=4031&Ver=4  

9 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2020/21 

9.2 Appendix 2 – Waste Dashboards Q3 2020/21 

9.3 Appendix 3 – Carbon Emissions Q3 2020/21 & EVCP Dashboard 2020/21 
 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan  N/A 

Previously Considered by: Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

26 January 2021 

Final Decision date   N/A 

 

39

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4037&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=630&MId=4031&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2020-2023 – Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 1 Status 

Action : Reduce the Council’s carbon footprint by at least 30% by 2030 and endeavour to become net-zero 
carbon as soon as viable before 2050. 

  

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

SKDC consistently taking steps to reduce its carbon emissions, working towards achieving net-zero carbon as soon as viable. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

SKDC carbon emissions. The target is at least 30% by 2030 and net-zero carbon as soon viable. This 
equates to a reduction of approx 190 tonnes CO2 per year.  It is expected 
delivery will not necessarily be even/linear each year and may be  +/- 10+% 

TBC   - 

Commentary :  
Data is currently being collected and verified to cover the whole 2020/21 financial year to the end of March 2021, including information from 
Environment SK, Invest SK, and data on water used and solar energy generated from SKDC buildings. Appendix 3 contains a quarterly carbon 
emissions tracker which indicates that the Council is on track to meet the annual reduction target. While data to Q3 of 2020/21 shows a significant 
reduction in CO2 emissions, these are significantly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic (e.g. lockdowns, work from home rules and facility 
closures) rather than solely being the result of direct operational changes.  
  

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 2 Status 

Action : Deliver the ‘Big Clean’ programme and maintain higher street standards.   

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

Maintain the higher street standard. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

Percentage of streets that 
meet clean streets standard. 

90% 96%   - 

Commentary : For 2020/21 96% of streets met the A grade of the national clean streets standard, with the remaining 4% achieving the B grade. 
These grades are interpreted as follows: 
Grade A :  No litter or refuse 
Grade B  : Predominantly free of litter and refuse apart from small items 
Grade C :  Widespread distribution of litter with minor accumulations 
Grade D :  Heavily littered with significant accumulations 

41



Appendix 1 

  

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 3 Status 

Action : Continue to innovate our approach to waste management to build on our strengths and maximise 
commercial and other opportunities. 

  

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

Continuing to develop our offer beyond statutory minimums. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

Number of garden waste bins. - 35,893   - 

% Growth 2% 5.18%   - 

Commercial waste income. Breakeven Y   - 

Commentary : Garden Waste service uptake was up 5.18% from 34,126 customers in 2019/20. 
The commercial waste service has successfully managed to break-even despite the extremely challenging operating environment with significant 
numbers of businesses forced to close as part of the national Covid-19 restrictions which had a significant knock-on impact on the commercial 
waste service.  The team took the approach of being extremely flexible to support customers and their reduced demand through Covid-19 which is 
now increasing as well as new customers being secured as the positive reputation of SKDC's commercial waste service becomes more widely 
known.  
  

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 4 Status 

Action : Maintain and enhance our green areas across the District, aiming to secure Green Flag status for Queen 
Elizabeth Park, Dysart Park and other relevant areas. 

  

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

Public satisfaction. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

Public satisfaction from 
visitors. Wyndham Park 

90+% 86.70%   - 

Public satisfaction from 
visitors. Queen Elizabeth Park 

80+% 87.70%   - 

Green Flag status Maintain Green Flag Status - Wyndham Park Y   - 

Commentary : Public Satisfaction with Wyndham Park is just below target (86.7% from 333 respondents) however Queen Elizabeth Park 
satisfaction well exceeded target, receiving 87.6% (from 222 respondents), an increase on 77.9% in 2019. 
Green Flag status at Wyndham Park has been maintained for the last 10 years, and in 2020/21 achieved its first Heritage award. Applications for 

42



Appendix 1 

both of these awards have been submitted for 2021/22 along with an additional Green flag status application for Queen Elizabeth park - it is 
expected that we will be informed of whether these have been successful in Q2 2021/22  
  

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 5 Status 

Action : Work proactively with Environment SK to deliver high quality services and maximise commercial 
opportunities. 

  

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

High performing and commercially successful company. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

Compliments. Establish Baseline Y   - 

Complaints. Establish Baseline N   - 

Commentary : Due to changes made to the method of complaints processing in Civica and that systems report running capabilities, accurate data 
has been available for this reporting period. EnvironmentSK report that they have received 25 compliments in the year 2020/21. Most of those 
received are in respect of quality of service or speed of response for grass and garden maintenance. Additional positive comments were received 
for work on winter salting, clearing of paths for the elderly complexes and the vaccination centre in Grantham. 
  
  

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 6 Status 

Action : Work with the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership to reduce waste and further improve recycling.    

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

LWP wide success in improving Lincolnshire's waste performance. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

Residual waste tonnes per 
1000 households. 

46 Tonnes 45.11 Tonnes   - 

Contribution to increasing the 
proportion of recycling, as set 
out in the LWP strategy. 

40% 38.78%   - 

Reduced non-target recyclable 
materials in the recycling 
stream. 

31% 30.29%   - 

43



Appendix 1 

Commentary : Appendix 2 shows the latest available data - up to Q3 for 2020/21. in this period the reduced Recycling, reuse and composting rate 
is attributed to lower garden waste volumes over winter months. In the year to date the Recycling, re-use and composting rate is above target at 
42.43%. 
  
  

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 7 Status 

Action : Recognise the changes in environmentally friendly modes of transport and seek to work with others to 
adapt required infrastructure. 

  

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

Understanding of demand for Electric Vehicle Charging Points and other infrastructure requirements. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

Number of EVCPs in South 
Kesteven. 

Build in to climate change action plan. 6   - 

Commentary : In 2020/21 six electric vehicle charging points were installed. The points, provided by SKDC in car parks in the towns of the district, 
will prove a useful asset as more and more residents transition towards electric vehicles. We estimate that for the data range to the end of March 
2021, almost 30,000 electric vehicle miles have been generated through use of the charging points, helping to reduce the overall district’s carbon 
emissions by 7.65 tonnes of carbon so far. The use of these points will continue to be monitored and assessment of future installations made 
based on the demand experienced.   
  

Priority A clean and sustainable environment No. 8 Status 

Action : Explore opportunities to build on the success of the food waste pilot and ensure the service is 
sustainable. 

  

What does Success Look 
Like: 

Responsible Post Director of 
Commercial and 
Operations 

Continuation of the food waste pilot area collection. 

Measure Target 2020/21 Achieved Status DoT 

Food waste tonnes collected. Undertake review & develop case to get the food waste collection trial area 
on a financially sustainable footing. 

Y   - 

Commentary : On the 1st December 2020, Cabinet agreed to continue the existing food waste collection service until at least March 2022, 
utilising the food waste financial reserve to fund and subject to the annual budget approval process. Additionally, support was given to expanding 
the food waste collection scheme, however this was dependent on available funding or Government regulation. Waste volumes can be found in 
appendix 2.  

44



Appendix 1 

Recent announcements from the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs mean that food waste collections will be required nationally 
from 2023.  

 

45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



/

Waste Collection Composition (Tonnes) by Month

0K

2K

4K

6K

January
2019

Febru…
2019

March
2019

April
2019

May
2019

June
2019

July
2019

August
2019

Septe…
2019

October
2019

Nove…
2019

Dece…
2019

January
2020

Febru…
2020

March
2020

April
2020

May
2020

June
2020

July
2020

August
2020

Septe…
2020

October
2020

Nove…
2020

Dece…
2020

2.8K
2.5K 2.5K

2.9K 3.0K
2.6K 2.6K 2.6K 2.7K

3.1K 2.8K
2.4K

2.9K
2.4K

2.9K 2.7K 2.8K 2.8K 2.8K 2.6K

3.4K
3.0K 2.9K 2.7K

1.2K

0.8K 0.8K

0.8K 0.9K

0.7K
1.1K 0.9K 0.9K

0.8K
0.8K

0.9K

1.2K

0.8K

0.8K 1.0K 0.9K 1.1K 0.9K
0.8K

0.8K
0.9K

0.9K 1.0K

0.7K

1.0K
1.4K

1.3K

1.4K
1.4K 1.0K

1.9K

0.7K

1.2K 1.4K 1.3K
1.6K

1.4K

0.9K

1.5K
1.5K

0.9K

Domestic Residual Waste (Tonnes) - EfW Domestic Recyclable Waste - Tonnes Garden Waste (Tonnes) - Composted

Reporting Period: Oct
 2020 to Dec 2020

Report Period

Multiple selections





2,843.08
Total Domestic Recyclable 
Waste (Tonnes) in Period

8,600.64
Total Domestic Residual 

Waste (Tonnes) in Period - 
EfW

2,604.36
Total Garden Waste (Tonnes) 

in Period- Composted

38.78%
Recycling Re-use & Composting 

Rate in Period

Report Period

Multiple selections 

Recycling, Re-use & Composting Rate

20%

40%

January
2019

Febru…
2019

March
2019

April
2019

May
2019

June
2019

July
2019

August
2019

Septe…
2019

Octob…
2019

Nove…
2019

Dece…
2019

January
2020

Febru…
2020

March
2020

April
2020

May
2020

June
2020

July
2020

August
2020

Septe…
2020

Octob…
2020

Nove…
2020

Dece…
2020

Average

33.83%

32.64%

49.20%

28.28% 29.97%

46.67% 46.40%

43.79%

32.66%

39.67%

48.86%

42.00%
44.30%

33.48%

43.03%

38.51%
47.75%

35.49%

40.75%
44.71%

40.23%
38.22%

43.65%

37.41%

40.00%
2020/21 Recycling Re-use and 

Composting Target

45.11
Residual Waste Per 1000 

Households In Period

46
2020/21 Residual Waste per 1000

 Households Target (Tonnes)

Appendix 2

47



/

30.29%
Total Non-Target Recyclable Materials in Recycling 

Waste (Based on Samples) In Period

Proportion of Collected Recycling Waste which is Non-Target Recyclable Materials (Based on Samples) -
used for Refuse Derived Fuel - in Relation to other Local Authorities in the Region

26%

28%

30%

32%

Other Lincolnshire LA's SKDC

30
.3

5%

30
.2

9%

30.02%

Lower Margin

SKDC Error Margin / 
Statistical Confidence 

30.55%

Higher Margin

Proportion of Collected Recycling Waste which is Non-Target Recyclable Materials (Based on Samples) - used for Refuse Derived Fuel

26%

28%

30%

32%

January
2019

February
2019

March
2019

April
2019

May
2019

June
2019

July 2019 August
2019

Septem…
2019

October
2019

Novem…
2019

Decem…
2019

January
2020

February
2020

March
2020

April
2020

May
2020

June
2020

July 2020 August
2020

Septem…
2020

October
2020

Novem…
2020

Decem…
2020

District Other Lincolnshire LA's SKDC

Reporting Period: Oct 
2020 to Dec 2020

Report Period

Multiple selections





Report Period

Multiple selections





31.00%
2020/21 Non-Target Material Volume Target (Less Than)

48



/

Commentary/Implications

Over the months October to December 2020 the amount of general waste that has 
been collected has decreased by 200 tonnes compared to the previous quarter. The 
recycling tonnage has increased by 300 over the same period. This is encouraging 
and is hopefully an indication that customers’ focus may be returning to recycling 
again. The figures indicate that the total waste collected has increased by 600 tonnes 
overall compared to Quarter 3 of the previous year. As previously observed, this is 
likely to be due to people staying at home for work and not going or eating out. The 
resultant waste, that would have traditionally gone into commercial waste from work 
places, is now going into domestic bins.
Green waste collected has remained stable through the year compared to 2019/20. As 
is to be expected, green waste tonnages drop off considerably during the winter 
months and as a result the reuse, recycling and composting rate for the quarter is at 
38.78% down from 45.04% for the first half of 2020/21 despite the improvement in 
recycling tonnage. However, it is expected that the significant increase in customers 
accessing the garden waste collection service should help to improve the reuse, 
recycling and composting rate for the year. 
The increase in fly tipping continues to have a significant impact on the service with 
410 cases in Q3 2020/21 compared to 196 in the same quarter of the previous year. It 
is hoped that LCC’s policy change to not specify which waste can be taken each day 
the Household Waste and Recycling Centres are open will help to reduce this number 
although anecdotal evidence suggests that the booking system that is still in operation 
may also be a contributor to the increase in fly tipping levels.

Household waste collected in the black bins or pink bags is sent to the Energy from 
Waste (EfW) plant at North Hykeham where it is used as a fuel to produce electricity. 
The contamination in the silver bins or clear bags is used as Refuse Derived Fuel 
(RDF) where it is used directly as fuel, usually at a cement works. None of our waste 
is sent to landfill (except in exceptional circumstances where the EfW plant is non-
operational).

Food Waste Tonneage by Reporting Period

0

20

40

January
2020

February
2020

March
2020

April
2020

May
2020

June
2020

July
2020

August
2020

Septe…
2020

October
2020

Novem…
2020

Decem…
2020

37

22 25 26 26 25 26 28 26 24 24 24

Number of Fly Tipping Incidents by Reporting Period

0

100

200

January
2020

February
2020

March
2020

April
2020

May
2020

June
2020

July
2020

August
2020

Septe…
2020

October
2020

Nove…
2020

Decem…
2020

11
7

11
1

94 88

12
8 15

6

15
4

15
7

17
0

13
5 17

2

10
3

Bins Not Collected by Reporting Period

0K

1K

2K

January
2020

February
2020

March
2020

April
2020

May
2020

June
2020

July
2020

August
2020

Septe…
2020

October
2020

Novem…
2020

Decem…
2020

12
79

12
02

13
23 16

01

14
67

15
64

14
45

15
31

16
05

13
35

22
66

49
186 61 63 11

1

90 15
4

96 93 11
6

15
4

17
6

10
5

12
8

79 12
4 24
1

21
6 33
3

22
4

19
5

14
1

14
5

18
6

13
7

Reason Contamination Missed Black Missed Silver and Green

Reporting Period: Oct 2020 to Dec 2020
Report Period

Multiple selec…





49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



/

Source
 

Frequency Confidence

Electric
Environment SK
Fleet
Gas
Leisure Centres
Member Travel
Refrigerants
Solar
Staff Travel
Waste
Water

Quarterly
Annual
Monthly
Quarterly
Variable
Monthly
Annual
Annual
Quarterly
Quarterly
Annual

Green
Green
Green
Green
DarkOrange
Green
Green
DarkOrange
Green
DarkOrange
Red

Confidence
 

Description

Green
Amber

Red

High level of confidence in the data supplied.
Moderate Level of confidence in the data supplied. May
include estimated or proxy data.
Low level of confidence in the data supplied. Data may be
incomplete or has not been effectively validated.

Commentary :

This tool analyses sources of carbon emissions across the operations of South 
Kesteven District Council, including the contribution of gas and electricity, 
emissions of the vehicle fleet and operation of the four Leisure Centres. 

This report considers the first three quarter periods of the year 2020/21, up until 
the end of December 2020. This period was exceptional in the enforced 
lockdowns which were imposed to prevent the spread of covid-19, which by 
necessity had an impact on the activities and carbon emissions of SKDC. As a 
result of this departure from business as usual, carbon emissions are significantly 
reduced in comparison to the baseline, for example in the case of Q1 carbon 
emissions were almost 50% lower than the reduction target for that period. 
Particular reductions were seen from the Leisure Centres and from other SKDC 
buildings as a result of closures.

While it is worth noting that SKDC achieved very significant carbon reductions in 
the period, it is worth bearing in mind these were not achieved by direct 
operational changes aiming to reduce carbon emissions, or by upgrade of existing 
facilities to improve energy efficiency. SKDC should look to understand where 
some of these reductions in energy used can be sustained as it returns to full 
operations, and continue to develop projects which tackle the hotspots of carbon 
emissions.

Data confidence is based on the previous years final collection and will be 
updated following the 2020/21 data validation process.

Appendix 3 - South 
Kesteven District Council 
Carbon Emissions Tracker

Data Quality Index :

51



/

South Kesteven District 
Council Carbon Emissions 
Tracker - Quarterly Update

Quarterly Emissions - CO2e Tonnes

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Year & Quarter

CO
2e

 T
on

ne
s

2019/2020 1 2019/2020 2 2019/2020 3 2019/2020 4 2020/2021 1 2020/2021 2 2020/2021 3

Tracked Emissions Quarterly Average: 1350

2018/19 Baseline Quarterly Average: 1898

1436

1290

1778

938

1316

1689

1003

Target Emissions Quarterly Co2e (Inc. Approximations for Annually reported emmisions)

December 2020
Last Complete Data Month

52



/

29,374.91
EV Miles Generated*

7.65
Expected CO2e saving generated by 

EVCP use

SKDC Electric Vehicle Charging Point Locations

Burghley Community Car Park

Community Centre Car Park

North Street Car Park - Stamford

Welham Street MSCP (level 2)

© 2021 TomTom, © 2021 Microsoft Corporation© 2021 TomTom, © 2021 Microsoft Corporation

6
Active Charging Points

Date Range

01/08/2020 31/03/2021

Carbon Savings

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

0.20

Date

CO
2e

 T
on

ne
s

Aug 2020 Sep 2020 Oct 2020 Nov 2020 Dec 2020 Jan 2021 Feb 2021 Mar 2021

CO2e Tns Saved/Day: 0.03

543
Charging Sessions

4.41%
Used Capacity

31/03/2021
Last Available 

Data Point

Electric Vehicle Charging Points Useage Dashboard

Report Period : 
August 2020/2021 

To March 
2020/2021

53

ms-pbi://www.bing.com/maps?cp=25~0&lvl=1&style=c&FORM=BMLOGO


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Climate change update

Serena Brown

Sustainability and Climate Change Officer

55

A
genda Item

 9



Update from Climate Change Action Task and Finish Group

• Considered whether to wind up the Task and Finish group now that the 

initial tasks of establishing a Council carbon footprint and identifying 

carbon reduction initiatives have been done

• Group agreed that there is value in continuing to meet, particularly 

recognising the value of the format as a joint Member/Officer group.

• The value of having a dedicated forum for discussing climate change was 

highlighted, focusing on wider issues as the Council’s work on reducing 

its own carbon footprint develops

• New Terms of Reference to be developed to include the remit and 

membership of the new Climate Action Group:

– To meet bi-annually moving forward

– To continue to report into Environment OSC and engage with other 

Committees as required

56



Achievements of the Task & Finish Group Include

• Raised awareness of climate change issues across SKDC

• Established the Council’s carbon footprint baseline

• Identified practical steps to reduce the Council’s carbon emissions

• Secured a £20,000 climate change reserve fund for 2020/2021

• Agreed the allocation of the climate change reserve fund

• Secured another £20,000 climate change reserve for 2021/2022

• Published the first annual Climate Matters online publication in 

November 2020

• Established a climate and carbon performance dashboard

• Secured £950,000 from the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme to 

deliver carbon reduction initiatives across four Council buildings

57



Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme – Salix

• The £1 billion grant is targeted at public buildings

• The focus of the grant is on energy efficiency and 

particularly decarbonisation of heat

• Overview:

– £950k for four buildings:

• St. Peter’s Hill and South Kesteven House

• Guildhall Arts Centre

• Bourne Corn Exchange

– Timings for delivery remain very tight

– Requirement to report back carbon and energy savings

• Benefits:

– 100% grant funding for capital works

– The projects will deliver a significant reduction in overall 

carbon emissions (the four buildings account for roughly 

25% of the baseline energy used across Council buildings 

and streetlights)

Eligible measures

- Insulation improvements 

- Replacement of gas boilers 

with low carbon heat pumps

- Upgrading lighting to LED

- Installing solar where possible

58



Green Homes Grant: Local Authority Delivery

• SKDC was informed in March 2021 that alongside other authorities, 

the Council had been allocated funding to roll out energy efficiency 

improvements in the district

• The funding total allocated to South Kesteven is £926k

• The funding targets low-income households, helping to reduce fuel 

poverty while reducing the carbon emissions associated with inefficient 

heating systems

• Proposal to target SKDC’s housing stock, namely properties which are 

off the gas network, which as a result have the most expensive to 

operate and carbon intensive heating systems

• Dependent on further surveys to individual properties, the proposal is 

to fit either 1. Air Source Heat Pumps, or 2. Smart Storage Heaters 

with solar thermal hot water systems. 

• As an example, a typical property which replaces a solid fuel heating 

system with an air source heat pump will reduce carbon emissions    

by over 90%

59



Climate Matters report: 2021

• Expect to include:

– Council Carbon footprint for 2020/21

– Update on projects developed in reporting 

period

– Update on district wide carbon emissions

• Considering content for 2021 report, aiming to 

publish in the Autumn

60



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2021/22 

WORK PROGRAMME 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP – 7 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

Tuesday 8 June 2021  

Trees in South 
Kesteven 

To receive a presentation by the 
Woodland Trust to give a brief 
overview of their role, the progress 
of the Tree Charter and the role of 
trees in carbon capture and 
storage. 
 
Hugh Dorrington from Aveland 
Trees Ltd to give a short 
presentation on Community 
Woodlands 
  
Lead Director: Gary Smith 

To consider joint initiatives 
with the Woodland Trust for 
future working to protect, 
preserve and replace 
protected trees, hedges and 
woodland 

Committee Member 
request 

Clean and sustainable 
environment 

DEFRA: 
Consultation on 
Consistency in 
Household and 
Business Recycling 
in England 

 
 
To receive a summary overview of 
DEFRA’s latest consultation 

To brief Committee 
Members on the 
consultation and receive 
input to inform the final draft 
consultation response 

Chairman’s request, after 
information provided by 
the Strategic Director – 
Commercial and 
Operations (May 2021) 

Clean and sustainable 
environment 

Dashboard Key 
Performance 
Indicators – 2020/21 
year end 

Update of Key Performance 
Indicators and 
targets to note progress against 
KPIs. 
Report author/Lead Director: 
Ben Russell/Ken Lyon 

To consider which areas 
have poor or good 
performance and to make 
recommendations for 
improvement or for 
continued success 

Developed from the 
SKDC Corporate Plan 
approved at Council on 1 
October 2020 

High 
performing 
council 

Quarterly figures 

61

A
genda Item

 10



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE 
ORIGINATED/COMMITTEE 

HISTORY DATE(S) 
CORPORATE/ 

PRIORITY 

Climate Change 
Update  
 

Updates from the Climate Change 
Action Task & Finish Group’s 
meeting on 12 March 2021. 
 
Public Sector Decarbonisation 
Scheme Update 
 

To provide an update on the 
proposed future direction of 
the Group 
 
To provide an update on the 
use of the grant funding 

Full Council approved the 
receipt of the grant 
funding on 1 March 2021 
– Members requested 
updates on its utilisation 

Clean and sustainable 
environment 

Tuesday 28 September 2021 

 
 

   

Tuesday 30 November 2021 

 
 

   

Tuesday 8 March 2022 

 
 

   

Tuesday 10 May 2022 

 
 

   

 

 

62



 
 

Unscheduled items 

Dashboard Key 
Performance Indicators 
– Q2/Q3/Q4 

Update of Key Performance Indicators and 
targets to note progress against KPIs. 
Report author/Lead Director: 
Ben Russell/Ken Lyon 

To consider which areas have poor or 
good performance and to make 
recommendations for improvement or 
for continued success 

High 
performing 
council 

Climate matters – 
Annual Report 

Report author/Lead Director: 
Serena Brown 

  

Air Quality Report 

Committee to contribute to the Action Plan 
Report author/Lead Director: 
Ann-Marie Coulthard 
 

  

Blue/Green Corridor -
update 

Update on the Queen Elizabeth Park wetland 
project.  
Report author/Lead Director: 
Gary Smith  
 

  

Street Trading Consent 
Policy 

Report author/Lead Director: 
Ann-Marie Coulthard 
 
 

  

Flooding - update 

Working with Partners to prevent flooding in 
SKDC  
Report author/Lead Director: 
Gary Smith/Anne-Marie Coulthard 

  

Progress on the Depot 
Project  

 
 
Report author/Lead Director: 
Gary Smith 
 

  

Work of TeamSK – 
Street Scene over the 
duration of the 
Pandemic 

Report author/Lead Director: 
Gary Smith/Anne-Marie Coulthard 
 
 

  

63



 
 

 
The remit of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet Members to assist with the development of policy and to 
scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

• Air Quality 

• Alcohol, entertainment and leisure licensing (Policy) http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=14134&p=0 (2016 policy due for review 
January 2021) 

• Allotments 

• Animal Welfare licensing (Policy) (guidance only, no policy: http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8305) 

• Business Trade & Licensing (Policy) (guidance only, no policy: http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8063) 

• Commercial, Industrial and Clinical Waste Collection and Management 

• Dog breeding & control orders 

• Domestic Waste & Recycling Management 

• Energy Efficiency 

• Estate and Grounds Maintenance 

• Flooding 

• Food Hygiene and Safety 

• Gambling & Lotteries licensing (Policy) http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=25537&p=0 (2020 policy due for review January 2022) 

• Health & Safety 

• Noise 

• Public Conveniences 

• Renewable Energy 

• Scrap Metal Dealers 

• Street Lighting 

• Street Services and Green Open Space Management 

• Tattoo, licensing and hygiene rating system (Policy) (guidance only, no policy: http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8317) 

• Taxi & private vehicle, driver and operator licensing (Policy) (policy currently under review) 
• Wild animal licensing (Policy) (no local policy. https://www.gov.uk/licence-wild-animal) 

64

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=14134&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8305
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8063
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=25537&p=0
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8317
https://www.gov.uk/licence-wild-animal


 
 

 
 

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Action Notes from the meeting held on 26 January 2021
	5 Updates from the previous meeting
	6 Trees in South Kesteven
	Presentation by The Woodland Trust

	7 DEFRA: Consultation on Consistency in Household and Business Recycling in England
	8 Corporate Plan - Key Performance Indicators
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	9 Climate Change Update
	10 Work Programme 2021/22

